
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 17, 2020

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, June 17, 2020

*
           Members of the media or the public may participate in the open session portion of this agenda by calling 1 (224)

501-3412, access code 654-371-317 . All participants' phones will be muted. Attendance at the meeting in person will
be limited.  If you would like to provide comments for the any of the items on the agenda, please submit those to
planning@beloitwi.gov by 12:00 noon on Wednesday, June 17, 2020.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 20, 2020 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. REPORTS
3.a. Resolution approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the property located on

S Sage Street in the Town of Turtle
Attachment

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS
4.a. Consideration of an amendment to a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan

for the property located at 2311 Winchester Drive to reduce the street side setback from 30
feet to 15 feet to allow the construction of a single-family home 
Attachment

4.b. Consideration of an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow a
secondary, on-premises sign larger than 30 square feet in area for the property located at 1255
Gateway Boulevard
Attachment

4.c. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan to allow multiple buildings
on one combined parcel for the properties located at 1405 Cranston Road and 2213 Advance
Drive
Attachment

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/616483/05-20-2020_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/616664/3_a__CSM-2020-11__Lots_17___18_S._Sage___TOT_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/617263/June_17_Item_4_a___PUD_Amendment__2311_Winchester_Drive.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/617243/June_17_Item_4_b___SOE__Amazon.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/616349/4_c__PUD-2020-04__1405_Cranston_Road__Plan_Commission.pdf


Beloit Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 17, 2020

Page | 2

6. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, May 20, 2020 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Weeden at 7:03PM. Commissioners Weeden 
attended in person.  Commissioners Finnegan, Ruster, Robson, and Councilor Preuschl 
were available on the phone. Commissioner Haynes and Johnson were absent. 

 
2. MINUTES 

2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 6, 2020 Plan Commission meeting 
Commissioner Robson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to approve 
the minutes. Roll call vote (4-0), motion passed. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3.a. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning from M-2, 
General Manufacturing District, to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 
1195 Prince Hall Drive  
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Weeden asked Ms. Christensen if there were any comments that came 
from the public, and she stated that there were none. 
 
Commissioner Weeden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Finnegan, seconded by Commissioner Robson to 
approve the Zoning Map Amendment.  Roll call vote (4-0), motion passed. 
 

3.b. Consideration of an amendment to a Conditional Use Permit to allow nightly rental 
of the rooms in the Rooming House located at 1105 E. Grand Avenue 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Robson asked if carbon monoxide detectors were included with the 
smoke detectors. Ms. Christensen stated yes to both of them.  
 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Weeden asked if each room had a bathroom. Ms. Christensen stated it 
is basically a big house with shared bathrooms.  
 
Commissioner Weeden asked Ms. Christensen if there were any comments that came 
from the public, and she stated that there were none. 
 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
Josue Sandoval, 625 Wisconsin Avenue, the applicant, stated there are four 
bathrooms total:  one private bathroom upstairs and downstairs, one public 
bathroom shared for three rooms, and one and a half bathrooms downstairs. 
Commissioner Weeden asked if this is limited to men only or men and women. Mr. 
Sandoval stated it is up to the travelers.  They have the option to have a more private 
section or a room that will have a bathroom used by other travelers.  
 
Councilor Preuschl said the place is looking nice and hopes the applicant has great 
success.  
 
Commissioner Robson asked what the rental rate was. Mr. Sandoval stated that the 
rooms with shared bathrooms go for $39 a night, the rooms with a private bathroom 
for $49 a night, and the rooms with a bathroom and kitchen go for $59 a night. 
Commissioner Weeden asked how long and why Mr. Sandoval expanded and 
changed the services under the conditional use permit. Mr. Sandoval stated that he 
has been doing the expanded service since last year, and he was not informed that 
he needed a permit for nightly basis not a monthly basis.  
 
Commissioner Robson asked how long the process is to get a permit for the nightly 
basis rental permit. Mr. Sandoval stated he is in the process right now of getting it 
and is not sure how long. 
 
Commissioner Weeden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Preuschl to amend the proposed conditions to require the 
applicant to comply with the Rock County license requirements, seconded by 
Commissioner Ruster. Roll call vote (4-0), motion passed. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Preuschl, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to approve 
conditional use permit as amended.  Roll call vote (4-0), motion passed. 
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the property 

located at the intersection of Ravine Drive and Natures Ridge Road in the Town of 
Beloit 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to 
approve the CSM.  Roll call vote (4-0), motion passed. 
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen stated the City Council approved the conditional use permit for the school 
age daycare at 1230 House St, the Planned Unit Development for 2426 Prairie Ave, the 
conditional use permit for the Lincoln Academy, the Eagles Ridge Plat, the Eagles Ridge 
Development Agreement, and the Whipple Development Agreement. Next meeting is 
expected to have one item and be held on June 3, 2020. 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion made by Robson, and seconded by Ruster to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried, 
voice vote (4, 0).  Meeting was adjourned at 7:40PM.  
 
Respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

 

5



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)  

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 17, 2020 

Agenda Item:  3.a 

File Number:  CSM-2020-11 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Combs & Associates  
 
Owner:  David A & Barbara A Tillery 
 
Address/Location: Parcel Numbers: 6-19-1170.117 & 6-19-1170.118 on S. Sage Street  
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has proposed a 1-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for S. 
Sage Street in the Town of Turtle.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The current use of the area covered by this CSM is vacant platted land for 
Single-Family Residences.   

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed CSM is to take the two lots and reconfigure 
them to create one larger for a future single-family home.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are vacant land uses to the north, east and west of 
the subject property. The properties to the north, east and west are zoned R-R, Rural 
Residential. To the south there are agricultural uses uses zoned AE, Exclusive Agriculture all 
located in The Town of Turtle subject to Town zoning.    
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map states these properties are located in the Municipal Boundaries and recommends –
Single-Family Residential-Exurban for the subject properties.  
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject properties are not currently served by municipal utilities.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts have no comments. 
 
 
 

6



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)  

 
 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 1-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located S. Sage Street in the Town of Turtle, subject to the 
following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2020 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, Plat of Vacation, Application, 
and Resolution. 

 

7



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)   

LOCATION MAP 
 

     
 
 
 

8



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)   

9



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)   

 
 
  

10



3(a) CSM-2020-11, Lots 17 & 18 S. Sage  (TOT)  

 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED ON S. SAGE STREET 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located on S. 
Sage Street, contain 2.10 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of 
the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOTS 17 & 18 OF TURTLE CREEK ESTATES, THE NW ¼ OF THE NW ¼ AND THE NE 
¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 27, T. 1N., R. 13E. TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK 
COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties 
located on S. Sage Street, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by 
December 31, 2020 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services 
Division. 

 
Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2020. 

 
Plan Commission 

 
 
  _ 

Timothy Weeden,  
Plan Commission Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

11



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: June 17, 2020

Agenda Item: 4(a)

File Number: PUD-2020-03

General Information

Applicant: John Knabe of Acadia Homes

Owner: Intrinsic I, LLC

Address/Location: 2311 Winchester Drive (Vacant Lot)

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: John Knabe of Acadia Homes has submitted an application to amend a
Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan to reduce the street side setback from 30’ to 15’ to
allow construction of a new single-family home on the lot located at 2311 Winchester Drive.

PUD Amendment Details: The subject property was subdivided and improved as part of the Walnut Grove
PUD, which established a minimum front and street side setback of 30 feet. The subject property is an 80’
wide x 141’ deep corner lot, and the applicant has proposed the construction of a new spec home with an
attached garage and driveway facing Deer Path Way. The front of the proposed home will face Winchester
Drive and will meet the minimum 30-foot setback as shown on the attached site plan. However, the proposed
street side setback on Deer Path Way is 15 feet. The applicant is John Knabe, formerly of New Leaf Homes.
John recently started his own construction company named Acadia Homes, and he has made accepted offers
to purchase and develop spec homes on several of the remaining vacant lots in the Walnut Grove subdivision.
The current property owner (seller) is Intrinsic I LLC, who has been developing duplex condos along Walnut
Street during the past few years.

Staff Analysis: The Walnut Grove Subdivision includes several vacant lots along Deer Path Way, including the
subject property. There has been consistent development activity in the area during the past 5 years, but it
has been the construction of duplex condos along Walnut Street. Of the three other properties at the corner
of Winchester and Deer Path Way, there are single-family homes on all of them and each complies with the
minimum 30-foot setbacks. The other three developed lots at this intersection are similarly sized to the
subject property. However, all three lots are oriented north-south whereas the subject property is oriented
east-west as shown on the attached map. The applicant is not seeking a variance, so is not required to prove a
true and actual hardship in order to get relief from the 30-foot setback. The PUD criteria below apply. A Public
Notice was published in the Beloit Daily News as a Class II notice and posted on the City’s website as required.

Review Agent Comments: The review agents have reviewed the proposed PUD and offered the following
comments:

• Fire Department: While not required, a walkway to the front door from Winchester would be ideal.

• Engineering: No issues with the setback request, but the maximum driveway width is 20 feet.

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria: Applications may be approved if the following criteria are met: 12



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent
of this chapter.
The City’s housing market continues to be extremely strong, and more single-family homes of all
types and price points are needed to meet existing and projected demand. Beloit-area realtors
report that spec homes are particularly demanded, and that is exactly what the applicant intends to
construct. The infrastructure serving the subject property was constructed more than a decade ago,
which means that deferred special assessment costs and new construction costs have both risen
sharply, requiring flexibility in order to make single-family development possible. The applicant will
meet the front setback of 30 feet, and is only seeking relief on the street side where there will be no
negative impact upon nearby property owners.

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.
The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an
attractive addition to Beloit’s Walnut Grove neighborhood.

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;
The property is already served with the necessary utilities and facilities.

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendations to
develop the site as single-family residential. The subject property is already zoned PUD.

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community.
The proposed amendment will allow the construction of a single-family spec home on a long-vacant
lot, which will add supply to an under-supplied housing market, add tax base, and facilitate the
development of a complete Walnut Grove neighborhood.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an amended PUD – Master Land Use Plan
to reduce the street side setback from 30’ to 15’ to allow construction of a new single-family home on the lot
located at 2311 Winchester Drive, subject to the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall obtain all required Building Permits and commence construction of a home on the
subject property within one year of this approval.

2. The maximum driveway width shall be 20 feet as required by City Ordinance.
3. All other requirements of the original Walnut Grove PUD approval remain in full force and effect.
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan

Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, Existing PUD Plan, Proposed Site Plan, Application, and Public Notice.

13



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

14



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

15



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

Proposed Site Plan

16



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

17



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

18



PUD-2020-03, 2311 Winchester Drive

19



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: June 17, 2020

Agenda Item: 4(b)

File Number: SOE-2020-01

General Information

Applicant: Bruce Hollar of D’Onofrio Kottke and Associates

Owner: Peyton Paisley WI LLC

Address/Location: Amazon Distribution Facility, 1255 Gateway Blvd

Applicant’s Request: Exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the
“Sign Ordinance”) to allow a secondary, on-premises sign larger than 30 square feet in area.

Staff Analysis

Amazon Sign Package: A 1.3 million square-foot Amazon Distribution Facility is under
construction on the subject property. The applicant has proposed two wall signs on the front
(north-facing) side of the building. The first proposed sign is 292 square feet in area and
classified as the Primary Sign, which is allowed by the Sign Ordinance. The second proposed
wall sign is 260 square feet, and is the subject of this request.

Sign Details: The Primary Sign (labeled AS-1 on the attachment) is the “smile” logo in blue
channel letters above the main office entrance. The proposed wall sign is 292 square feet,
which is allowed by the Sign Ordinance. Proposed Secondary Sign #1 (labeled AS-2) is the word
“Amazon” and a smaller “smile” logo in blue channel letters at the eastern end of the front
(north-facing) façade. As you look at the building from the front, this proposed 260 square-foot
sign is at the far left of the building.

Applicant’s Hardship Argument: According to the applicant, the size of the building, length of
the northern façade, and setback distance from the roadway would all contribute to poor sign
visibility if the secondary sign were limited to 30 square feet. According to the Sign Ordinance,
the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that compliance will create an
economic hardship, the hardship is not self-created, and the exception will not undermine the
purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest.

Exception Standards: Section 30.48(2) of the Sign Ordinance outlines standards for granting an
exception. The Ordinance states that the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it
determines that:

a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would create an
economic hardship by either unreasonably restricting an on-premises sign

20



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

owner from advertising a business or rendering conformity with such
regulations unnecessarily burdensome upon an owner of an on-premises sign.

• Given the massive scale and layout of this regionally significant
development, limiting the secondary wall sign to only 30 square feet
would be unnecessarily burdensome. Visibility of the main entrance
(and primary sign) is restricted by pre-existing buildings along Colley
Road, so the visibility of a second large wall sign is paramount.

b. The hardship is not self-created.

• The hardship is due to the tremendous scale (1.3 million square-feet)
and setback (600 feet) of the structure, which would render a 30
square-foot sign ineffective. In addition, the tenant requires brand
consistency to assist in navigation for all visitors to the site.

c. The exception will not undermine the purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the
public interest.
 The primary sign, two of the three secondary signs and the directional

signs will comply with the Sign Ordinance.
 While the proposed secondary wall sign is relatively large at 260

square feet, it is completely proportional to the size of this massive
building and is therefore consistent with the intent of the Ordinance.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an exception to Section
30.40(2)(c) of the Sign Ordinance to allow a secondary, on-premises sign larger than 30 square
feet in area, for the Amazon property located at 1255 Gateway Blvd, based on the above
Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes a secondary, on-premises wall sign consisting of channel letters
as depicted on the rendering labeled AS-1 of the submitted sign package. A Sign Permit
is required prior to construction of any and all signs.

2. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be
approved by the Plan Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

ATTACHMENTS: Building Photos, Sign Renderings, Application, Public Notice, and Resolution.

21



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

Photos Taken 6/10/20

22



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

23



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

24



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

25



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

26



SOE-2020-01, Amazon, 1255 Gateway Blvd

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXCEPTION TO
THE SIGN ORDINANCE FOR THE PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 1255 GATEWAY BLVD

WHEREAS, the application of Bruce Hollar of D’Onofrio Kottke and Associates for an
exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to
allow a secondary, on-premises sign larger than 30 square feet in area, for the Amazon property
located at 1255 Gateway Blvd, having been considered by the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the
City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant an exception to Section 30.40(2)(c) of
the Sign Ordinance to allow a secondary, on-premises sign larger than 30 square feet in area, for
the Amazon property located at 1255 Gateway Blvd in the City of Beloit, for the following
described premises:

Lot 1 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 40 on Pages 135-138 of the
Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, County of
Rock, State of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 80 acres, more or less.

This exception is subject to the following conditions:
1. This approval authorizes a secondary, on-premises wall sign consisting of channel letters

as depicted on the rendering labeled AS-1 of the submitted sign package. A Sign Permit
is required prior to construction of any and all signs.

2. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be
approved by the Plan Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2020.

PLAN COMMISSION

Tim Weeden, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen
Community Development Director

27



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 17, 2020 

Agenda Item:  4.c.  

File Number:  PUD-2020-04 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Midwest Construction of Northern Illinois Inc. 
 
Owner:  Bevk Enterprise, LLC 
 
Address/Location:  1405 Cranston Road & 2213 Advance Drive 
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:   
 
Midwest Construction of Northern Illinois Inc. on behalf of Bevk Enterprise LLC, is requesting 
multiple buildings on one parcel.  1405 Cranston Road and 2213 Advance Drive will be 
combined into one parcel, and an addition to the existing carwash facility. The building 
currently located on 2213 Advance Drive would remain on site.  The properties are zoned 
Community Commercial District (C-3) and are proposed to be rezoned to Planned Unit 
Development, PUD. The Zoning Map Amendment request will be submitted in the near future. 
 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process:  A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district 
and a type of development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no 
rights of development apply to a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD 
plan. PUDs are processed in three stages: Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and 
Final (Site) Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map Amendments may be processed 
concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until approval of a PUD 
Master Land Use Plan. 
 
The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, 
including the number, type, and location of buildings and other uses; impacts on surrounding 
areas; and the adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the 
establishment of the basic parameters for development of the PUD. The PUD Final (Site) Plan 
is the document upon which building permits and other applicable approvals are issued. The 
applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary to demonstrate that 
all applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met. 
 
 

28



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Site Conditions:  The current sites are located on the northeast side of Beloit adjacent 
to the City limits. The 1405 Cranston Road property currently has two access points; one from 
Cranston Road and the other from Advance Drive. The 3,745 square-foot building includes 4 
self-service car wash stalls. 2213 Advance Drive has one access point off of Advance Drive and a 
644 square-foot commercial building used as a hair salon.  

 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  A U.S. Cellular retail store and Barns Building and 
Remodeling are to the north and east of the property and zoned B-2, Local Business within the 
Town of Beloit.  House of Carpets and Gentlemen of the Press are to the south and west of the 
subject property and zoned C-3, Community Commercial within the City of Beloit.  
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Map recommends Planned Mixed Use; this land use category is intended to facilitate a carefully 
controlled mix of commercial and residential uses. This request supports Strategic Goals #3 by 
creating economic growth. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  
The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed PUD and offered the following 
comments:  
 
Alliant Energy:  

• There is a gas service on the north side of the existing car wash that will need to be 
moved prior to construction at the customer’s cost.   

 
Fire Department:  

• This layout is an improvement, but there is still noncompliance with the full 20 foot-
wide fire access road around the entire building.  The problem is with the less than 20 
foot wide access lane to the existing wash bays next to the building where the current 
vacuums are located.  If the que lanes for the new auto wash were to be moved south 
to align with the parking pavement on the southwest corner, this should allow a twenty 
foot wide turn on the southeast corner of the building.  Without this added width at this 
point, the current proposal does not comply with the NFPA Code.  

 
Engineering Department:  

• The existing driveway on Cranston Road should be removed.  In doing so, the 
depressed curb should be removed and replaced with barrier curb.  The driveway 
pavement within the right-of-way should be removed and replaced with grass.   

• The badly deteriorated sidewalk across the existing driveway on Cranston needs to 
be removed and replaced to the east property line. 

29



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

• The existing sidewalk curb ramp at the intersection of Cranston Road and Advance 
Drive needs to be removed and replaced with a curb ramp that meets the 
requirements of the Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG).    

 
AT&T: 

• AT&T has facilities that run from Cranston Rd, north along the east property line of the 
address and along the rear lot line of the addresses along the east side of Advance Dr.  If 
the property owner requests AT&T to relocate facilities, the costs may be compensable. 
AT&T does not have records that would show where any buried service wire to the 
building is located. 

 
Charter Communication: 

• Charter would like the owner to contact them to discuss moving their service line.  They 
believe the service is located on the north side of the carwash.   

  
 
PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria:  Applications may be approved if the following 
criteria are met: 
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished 
through strict application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based 
on the purpose and intent of this chapter.  
The proposed PUD allows for multiple buildings on one parcel of land that will 
contribute to infill development. 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 
5-300.  
As a property improvement project, the proposed PUD will provide an enhanced 
service and a positive upgrade that is compatible with adjacent uses. 

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public 
services, facilities, and programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the 
property is developed;  
The properties are already served with the necessary utilities and facilities. All 
relocation/replacement costs will be borne by the developer. 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and 
objectives contained in the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy 
documents; and  
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s 
recommendations for Planned Mixed Use. Planned Mixed Use can be accomplished 
with a Planned Unit Development.  

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the 
development will promote the general welfare of the community.  
The PUD will comply with all of the City’s current site, building, lighting, and 
landscaping standards.  

 
30



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

 
Zoning Ordinance Requirements:    

 
Allowed Uses: The permitted uses within the PUD would include: a 4 stall manual self-
service car wash, one automatic drive through carwash, and C-3 Commercial Uses in the 
existing commercial building.     
 
Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards:A 30 feet setbacks must be maintained from 
the PUD district boundaries. A landscape strip is required along the portions of the 
perimeter of the PUD located adjacent to the public streets. 
 
Parking and Loading Requirements:  According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
self-service carwash stalls must provide 3 stacking spaces from the entrance and provide 4 
stacking spaces for the automatic car wash stall from the entrance.  The site has an 
adequate number of parking spaces. 

   
Other Requirements: The final PUD (site) plan shall comply with the access changes 
requested by the Fire Inspector. The existing driveway on Cranston Road should be 
removed, depressed curb must be removed and replaced with barrier curb, and driveway 
pavement within the right-of-way should be removed and replaced with grass.   Sidewalk 
across the existing driveway on Cranston needs to be removed and replaced to the east 
property line. The existing sidewalk curb ramp at the intersection of Cranston Road and 
Advance Drive needs to be removed and replaced with a curb ramp that meets the 
requirements of the Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG).    
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION – PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use 
Plan for the properties located at 1405 Cranston Road and 2213 Advance Drive, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. This approval authorizes the addition of a one automatic car wash stall to the 4 existing 
manual stalls, the continued use of a 644 square foot building with C-3, Community 
Commercial Uses, maintaining 30 foot setbacks from all PUD boundaries, the installation 
of a landscaping strip installed on PUD boundaries that are adjacent to public streets, 
with code compliant stacking spaces as shown on the attached plan. A Conditional Use 
Permit for a drive-thru use in C-3 is not needed. 

2. The design standards shall be those that apply in the C-3 Community Commercial 
District (i.e. lot size, setbacks, height, and building coverage). 

3. The final PUD (site) plan shall address the Fire Department and Engineering comments.   
4. A zoning map amendment to Planned Unit Development District must be submitted 

prior to issuing site plan approval (Final PUD Plan approval).  
5. The applicant shall submit a request to the Assessor’s office to combine the parcels 

administratively prior to site plan approval. 

31



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

6. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall obtain site plan and 
architectural approval, which shall include a detailed review of all site, grading, utility, 
landscape, and lighting plans. All of the attached Review Agent comments shall be 
addressed prior to or during the Site Plan Review process. 

7. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved 
by the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. 
The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes 
administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet all 
of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, PUD - Master Land Use Plan, Review Agent Comments, 
Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 

32



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
e

g
e

n
d

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n

<
a

ll 
o

th
e
r 

v
a

lu
e
s
>

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
C

L
A

S
S

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
B

D
-1

C
B

D
-2

D
H

M
-1

M
-2

M
R

O

P
L

I

P
U

D

R
-1

A

R
-1

B

R
-2

R
-3

R
-4

P
a

rc
e
l 
P

o
ly

C
it
y
 L

im
it
s
 (

C
o
rp

 P
o
ly

)

33



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

 
MASTER LAND USE PLAN  

34



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

35



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC ReviewWash 

36



PUD-2020-4 1405 Cranston Road  

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
June 4, 2020 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 

Midwest Construction of N. IL Inc on behalf of Bevk Enterprise LLC, has submitted an 
application for review and consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land 
Use Plan for the properties located at:  1405 Cranston Road & 2213 Advanced Drive.  

 

The request is if for multiple buildings on one combined parcel.  The applicant would like to add 
an additional building to the carwash facility along with a portion of land to the north. The 
properties are zoned Community Commercial District (C-3) and is proposed to be rezoned to 
Planned Unit Development, PUD. A copy of the proposed plan is attached.   

 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, June 17, 2020, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Monday, July 6, 2020, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 

We are interested in your opinion.* 
 

*Due to the COVID-19 crisis, members of the public are highly encouraged to provide oral 
or written comments to the Commission and City Council via alternative means.  You may 
mail your comments to the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to 
rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  You may also call (608) 247-2965 to provide your comments 
over the phone.  In-person attendance at Commission and Council meetings will be limited. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

37

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


PUD-2020-4 1405 Cranston Road  

ATTN: KEVIN CARNES 
CARNES RENTALS LLC 

1950 BOULDER LN 
BELOIT, WI 53511-6705 

 

  

LUTHERAN SOCIAL SERVICES OF 
WIS & UPPER MICH 

6737 W WASHINGTON ST STE 2275 
MILWAUKEE, WI 53214-5666 

 

  

2121 MILTON AVENUE 
PROPERTY LLC 

2600 E MILWAUKEE ST 
JANESVILLE WI 53545 

  

A & B CARPET COMPANY 
1410 CRANSTON RD 
BELOIT WI 535112538 

 

  

ALFRED L & WENDY K 
TALIGNANI 

1414 CRANSTON RD 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

C/O CHAD BARNES 1401 
CRANSTON LLC 

1401 CRANSTON RD 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

II GRAVES ENTERPRISES LLC 
2220 LIBERTY AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

NINETTE KARNES TRUST 
305 OAK LEAF CT 

SOUTH BELOIT IL 61080 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 

38



PUD-2020-4 1405 Cranston Road  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

39



PUD-2020-4 1405 Cranston Road  

40



PUD-2020-4 1405 Cranston Road  

41



PUD-2020-04, 1405 Cranston Road -Ready for JC Review 

  
Public Works Department 

Engineering Division 
 

 
To: Hilary Rottmann, Planner II 

From: Scot Prindiville, City Engineer 

Re: 1405 Cranston – PUD Review 

Date: June 9, 2020 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Engineering has been provided an undated copy of the concept plan for the above 
referenced project prepared by RH Batterman.  We have the following comments: 

 
 The existing driveway on Cranston Road should be removed.  In doing so, the depressed 

curb should be removed and replaced with barrier curb.  The driveway pavement within 
the right of way should be removed and replaced with grass.   

 The badly deteriorated sidewalk across the existing driveway on Cranston needs to be 
removed and replaced to the east property line. 

 The existing sidewalk curb ramp at the intersection of Cranston Road and Advance Drive 
needs to be removed and replaced with a curb ramp that meets the requirements of the 
Public Right of Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG).    
 

 

 
 

 

42


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-2410 - Attachment
	2018-2379 - Attachment
	2018-2377 - Attachment
	2018-2378 - Attachment
	2018-2409 - Attachment

